
\ i'CA Official Filing 
I ***1/9/2006 2:26 PM*** **** **1 

Matilda Sanders OD24 -7p 
From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Jennifer Gunter ~ennifer@fostermalish.com] 
Monday, January 09,2006 2:22 PM 
Filings@psc.state.fl.us 
In the Matter of the Complaint of dPi Teleconnect against Verizon ... - Motion for 
Emergency Relief and Temporary Order 

Importance: High 

Attachments: AR-M450~20060109~141517.pdf 

AR-M450-20 
19-141517.p~ 

Please file this today and call me upon receipt. Thank 
~~AR-M450-20060109-141517.pdf>> 

' 0 1  .. 

Jennifer L. Gunter, CP 
Paralegal 
Foster Malish Blair & Cowan, LLP 
1403 West Sixth Street 
Austin, TX 78703 
(512) 476-8591 
(5 12 ) 477 - 8 657/f ax 
jennifer@fostermalish.com 
This e-mail, and any attachments thereto, is intended only for use by the addressee(s) named 
herein and may contain legally privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the 
intended recipient of this e-mail, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, 
distribution or copying of this e-mail, and any attachments thereto, is strictly prohibited. 
If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify me at (512) 476-8591 and 
permanently delete the original and any copy of any e-mail and any printout thereof. 



BEFORE 
THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF FLORIDA 

In the matter of the Complaint of dPi 1 
Teleconnect, L.L.C. Against Verizon for ‘) CaseNo. Dboo20 .- 7 
Unlawfully Termjnating Service Provisioning. ) 

MOTION FOR EMERGENCY RELIEF AND TEMPORARY ORDER REQUIRING 
VERTZUN TO CEASE AND DESIST FROM SUSPENDING DPI’S PROVISIONING 

dPi Teleconnect, L.L.C., f“dPi”) submits this Motion to the Public Service Commission of 

Florida (the “Commission”) requesting that the Commission issue an immediate order preserving 

the status quo and enjoining Verizon from suspending or otherwise affecting dPi’s provisioning 

ability. 

FACTS AND N A ” R E  OF THE DISPUTE 

The parties’ dispute arises under the parties’ interconnection agreement and centers on a 

deadline imposed by Verizon for dPi to comply with a demand for assurance. Verizon’s demand was 

made by letter dated December 15, 2005, and provides that it will suspend dPi’s provisioning 

beginning January 9, 2006, if a letter of credit in the amount of $57,000.00 %om a financial 

institution acceptabIe to Verizon” is not provided by January 6, 2006. The letter is attached as 

Exhibit A. 

The demand was sent just before the holidays in response to alate payincnt that was the result 

of ai oversight on dPi’s part. dPi immediately submitted payment when the oversight was brought 

to its attention, which made it current on all bills. 

The dispute has arisen because the unreasonably short mount  of time allowed by Verizoii 

paired with tlie timing in relation to the holidays made it impossible for dPi to cornply with 



Verizon’s demand despite diligent efforts to do so. dPi’s efforts at an informal dispute resolution 

were fiwtraled by the fact that the Verizon personnel with the authority to discuss tlie possibility of 

extending the deadline to comply with Verizon’s demand were out of the office over the holidays. 

dPi has been unable to identify a provision in the interconnection agreement that requires it 

comply with a demand for a letter of credit in the amount of time allocated by Verizon aid, even if 

such a provision exists, dPi submits that the deadline is unreasonable under the circumstances. dPi 

has every intention of complying with Verizon’s request for a letter of credit but iliainlains that it is 

entitled to a reasonable m o u n t  of time in which to do so. 

ANALYSIS 

dPi IS ENTITLED TO EMlERGENCY RELIEF 

dPi is entitled to emergency injunctive relief in this case because: 

I. dPi has a substantial likelihood of success on the merits; 

2. It faces a substantial threat of irreparable injury without the reliee 

3. The threatened injury to dPi outweighs any threatened harm to Verizon from a 

preservation of the status quo; and 

Injunctive relief is necessary to prevent the threatened harni. 4, 

dPi has a substantial likelihood of success on the merits: 

As noted earlier, tlie dispute relates to a circumstance that is not addressed by tlie terms of 

the interconnection agreement. Consequently, a reasonable term must be applied. Verizon’s 

arbitari1.y imposed deadline is not permitted by the contract and is unreasonable under the 

circumstances. Consequently, dPi has a substantial likelihood of prevailing on the merits in this 

case. 
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dPi faces imminent harm if injunctive relief is not granted: 

Verizon’s demand letter clearly threatens suspension and ternination of service if dPi does 

not inmediately meet its arbitrary and unreasonable deadline for paying the requested deposit See 

Exhibit A .  Any such suspension or termination would seriously compromise dPi’s ability to process 

new customer orders, change orders or orders for suspension or restoral of service. dPi’s customers 

would not be provided telecommunications services at the rates and quality of service ordinarily 

provided by dPi, which would have a serious impact on dPi’s good will with its customers. dPi 

would quickly sustain irreparable damage and could be put out of business altogether. 

In order to avoid the dire consequences of suspension of service order provisioning and to 

allow the parties’ legitimate m u t e s  regarding the ambiguous terms of the interconnection 

agreement to proceed to hearing and decision on the merits, injunctive relief is needed. SpecScaIly, 

the Conmission should order Verizon to cease and desist from its efforts to suspend order 

provisioning. 

The threatened injury to dPi outweighs any threatened harm to Verizon from preserving the 
status quo. 

Maintaining the status quo will not harm Verizon. dPi is current on its existing bills and will 

be able to coinply with Verizon’s demand for assurance fairly quickly. It needs only a reasoiiable 

amount of tinie in which to do so and, in fact, believes that it can do so within two weeks. Verizon 

will not be haimed by continuing to provide provisioning to dPi for such a short tinie. As sbown 

above, dPi, on the other hand, will quickly sustain irreparable damage if it is disconnected or 

otherwise unable to provision ils customers’ accounts and could be put out of business altogether. 
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Injunctive relief is necessary; without it dPi faces wrongful and irreparably damaging 
suspension and termination. 

Injunctive relief is necessary because Verizon has threatened to suspend or terii6nate dPi’s 

provisioning unIess dPi meets an arbitrary and unreasonable deadline for paying the deposit. 

CONCLUSION AND PRAWR FOR RELmF 

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, based upon the foregoing and attachments 

hereto, dPi respectfully requests and prays that: 

a) A temporary order be issued immediately that directs Verizon to cease and desist 

from its threatened action to discontinue service order provisioning during the 

pendency of th is  proceeding and that this temporary order continue in full force and 

effect until such time as a ruling can be made after a fill hearing may be held on this 

matter; 

b) Following hearing on the merits of the issues set forth above, the interconnection 

agreement be read to impose a reasonable deadline for compliance with a demand for 

assurance; and 

c) dPi be awarded any other and fbriher legal and equitable relief to which it is entitled. 

4 

_ _ _  ,. .. . ~ .. . .... . .... ..., . . . . . . . .. ____ __I_. -. 



Respectfilly submitted, 

/SI Brian A. BolinPer 
Brian A. Bolinger 
Vice President Legal Affairs 
dPi TeleComect, LLC 
2997 LBJ Freeway, Suite 225 
Dallas, Texas 75234 
(972) 488-5500, ext. 4018 
(972) 40670 193/fi 

Foster Malish Blair & Cowan, L.L.P. 
1403 West Sixth Street 
Austin, Texas 78703 
(5 12) 476-859 1 
(5 12) 477-8657/fa~ 

By: /s/ Chistonher Malish 
Christopher Malish 
Texas Bar No. 00791 164 
ATTORNEYS FOR DPI 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this the 9* day of January, 2006, served a true and correct copy 

of the foregoing to the following via facsimile or certified mail, return receipt requested: 

Verizon Florida, Inc. 
David Christian, Vice-president 
106 E. College Ave. 
Tallahassee, FL 32301-7748 

Is/ ChrisMalish 
Chris Malish 
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December 15,2005 

Bdan A, Bolingcr 
Vice President of* Affairs 
dPi Tdecmect,  LLC 

Dallas, TX 75234 
2997 LBJ Freeway 

David Fikoff 
Vice President 
dPi Teleconnect, LLC! 
2997 L13J F m a y ,  Suite 225 
Dallas, TX 75234 

Re: Notice of Payment Default and P d n g  Termination of $mice  - Florida 

Dear Messrs. Bolhger and PikofE 
I 

Please take notice that dPi Telemnnect, LLC (YIPi?') is again in &hilt. of ite bill payment obligatiom m 
Florida under ita Ammded, Extend* and Restated Agreement (the "Agnemmt") with Verizon Florida 
h. I ' ~ - e d Z o n ' ~ .  

dpi is now in &&kt with rtspect to such charges owed to Verkcm in the m u n t  of $57,49827. Tbis 
default arises from &l's f%iIure to pay wdisputed past due m l d  service charges. Attached please fiM 
account information ament as of Decanber 12, 2005. As noted in thc attached chart, Vcrimn has 
deducted from its payment dmmd dl disputes that V h o n  has received' As you know, V u i m  and its 
telephone operating company affiliates previously sent dPi payment default notices on June 10,2004 in 
rcveral states, including Florida, so this is now the second such noticc that Vecizon and its affiljrrtes have 
had to send dPi in less than two years. 

Vetizan sends this formal notice o f  papent default pursuant to Section 12 of the Agreement. dPi must 
o m  this payment deWt by electronic payment of 857,498.m received on or b&re January 17,2006. 
E dPi fails to pay its oufe amount, then Ve+m u4.U suspcnd its acceptance of any dPi s&cc orders 
(except disconnects)', and will temhate  all exisking servicc pmvided undw thc Agmement beginning ow 
or after J~nuary 18,2006, 

Section 9.2 of the Agreement quires payments to be tranmittcd by "electronic fuuds transfer or in a 
manner that is and continues to be oth"isc mutually agroeable between the Parties." Because dliri has 

YctjWn understands that dPi k.~ s~scrted that it ha6 additional diqutcs, but it has not provided these m Vmizon thmu& the 
standard claime process. 

A&% that 
cxphincd below. 

service ~tda accept- hs not alrcady btcn suspended foot faiture tO provide Bdcquate as 
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dPi Telacannctf LLC 
Deember 15.2005 
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repeatedly iailed to pay its bills on time, payment by check is IIO longor agreeable to ’V&oa. nerefore, 
Verizon hereby de”& that dPi comply with ia obligatiims under thc ApcmEnt by rerrde~p all 
payments from now on by electronic means, Insttllctions for scnding wire, ED1 or ACH pqments are 
attached. 

Pursuant l o  Section 13 of the Agrement, if dPi will actually discontinue its customer s h c e  for any 
reason2 it is dPi’s sole responsibility t o  provide written notice of such i d c c  discontiauarrcc to its 
customers, VctiZan, and the Florida Public Service Commission. Therefore, if dpi does not intend to cure 
its defaults3 it must “e that i ts customers sre notified as soon as possible so that they can sclcct an 
a lmarc  local s m b  cz&m, 

As a mult of dPi.’s failure to timely pay bilk rendered, d e r  Section 62 of the Agreerna  Verizon is 
entitled to demand adcquat~ assusan,ce of payments due and to become due in the amount of two months’ 
anticipated chargcs. Per Section 6.a3 af the Agm”nt ,  if Verizon demands this assu~ance of payment 
and dPi fails to provide it, VaiZon is ent;tled to suspend i t s  pexfbrmance obligatirms. 

Accordingly, Verizm hereby exercises its adequatc assurance rights mder Section 6 of the qwment ,  
and dman.ds that dPi furnish an he.vucable standby letter of credit in the amount of S572000.00 naming 
Vaiizon as the beneficiary thereof in form and substance acceptable to Verizon from a financial 
institution acceptable to Verizon, This letter of credit must be delivered to Verizon no later than January 
6,2006. If the letter of credit is not deilvercd by &at &to, thm VcriZon wil l  suspmd in part: its; provision 
of service to dPi and will s fbe  alI new or pendin8 scrVice ordm (except disconnects) to add or to 
chaage existing service at any time on or aRM January 9,2006. 

Verizon mtpm all of its rights to exercise any or all of its c u m ~ v e  remedies, and will co,ritbue to 
exmi= any and all atailabIe legal xights to colIect payment for all services mdered and to limit its risk 
of accruing additional unpaid service charges. Please contact me immediately to arrange payment in cure 
of this dPi breach of payment obligations in Florida. 

Sincerely, 

Dcb K. Hill 

Section 6.8 “Notwithstanding anythjng clsc set forth in this Apement, VVerizon makes a request far assurance ofpayrnmt Sa 
accordance with the terms of (his Section, then Vwizan shall have no ohliption thereafter to pctf6nn under thie A p m a n t  utrlil 
such time as dPi has provided Vuizm with ruth assurance of payment. pm+,dc& h o w ” ,  that Vcrimn shan pin: dPi B 
mininnim of ten (10) businas days io respond td a request for amiancc af payment before invoking this . p q r x p h . *  

This amount Is based on the average of dPi’s monthly savicc chsrgesl billed in October, November and DEambq 2005, 
multip[icd by two. 


